INSTRUCTIONS

SEE

Form 10-300 UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
(July 1969) NATIONAL PARK SERVICE Kansas
CounTv: ¢ .
NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES Fllis

INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM

Ve FOR NPS USE ONLY

ENTRY NUMBER DATE
2.

Vi

(Type all entries — complete applicable sections)

77

Fort Hays

AND/OR HISTORIC:

STREET AND NUMBER:

Frontier Historical Park

CITY OR TOWN:

Hays

STATE CoDE |[COUNTY:

Kansas 67601

CODE

. ACCESSIBLE

CATEGORY
OWNER STATUS
(Check One) NERSHIP TO THE PUBLIC
[ District X Building Public Public Acquisition: K] Occupied Yes:
[ Site ] Structure |[J Private [ In Process [ Unoccupied [X Restricted
1 Object ] Both [J Being Considered [] Preservation work O Unrestricted
in progress O Ne

PRESENT USE (Check One or More as Appropriate)

[J Transportation [[] Comments

[[] Other (Specity)

[] Agricultural 7] Government Park

[} Commercial [J Industrial [[] Private Residence
[ Educational [ Military [ Religious

] Entertainment Museum [ Scientific

OWNER'S N AME: g;
State of Kansas 5
STREET AND NUMBER: m
State Capitol ?g;j
CITY OR TOWN: N STATE: cope |W
et
Topeka. Kansas 66612 ap o
COURTHOUSE, N : 8
, Register of Deeds &g
STREET AND NUMBER: | o j
Ellis County Courthouse o
CITY OR TOWN: STATE CODE
Hays Kansas 67601 (3B
N
TITLE OF SURVEY: \\‘ g
A Survey of Historic Sites and Structures in Kansas NER
DATE OF SURVEY: 1957 [[] Federal X State [ County [ Local ~ ; g
DEPOSITORY FOR SURVEY RECORDS: % %—' z
0
Kansas State Historical Society Q |nle
- A ]
REET AND NUMBER: @
STREET ARDEEMEERT 120 West 10th St, ~ o
P4
CITY OR TOWN: STATE: CODE =
Topeka K 66612 S~
p ansasg Q\g
4 -1
m




(Check One)
X} Excellent [] Good [ Fair [} Deteriorated [J Ruins [} Unexposed

CONDITION (Check One) (Check One)

[ Altered Unaltered ] Moved @ Original Site

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

When Fort Hays was abandoned in 1889, there were 38 buildings
still standing. All of the buildings, except the blockhouse, guard-
house, and bakery, were of frame constructiop. To az/only three
buildings remain-~the blockhouse,/guardhouse) and one/frame officers'
quarters.™ e aTe ; A pinbetsdalied

The blockhouse is a stone building hexagonal in shape with a 17
foot radius. It has two wings exteg@}ggﬁﬁi‘t}h and south, each 17
feet square. The building was equipped with rifle slits, but the fort
was never attacked, The building was used.as 2 post headquarters and
adjutant's quarters. Extensive restoration work has been done on the
blockhouse and it presently is in excellent condition and looks much
as it did when Fort Hays was an active military post.

The guardhouse is also a stone building, 100 feet long and 2L
feet wide. In the building were furnished quarters for the Officer
of “the Guard, a guard room, and a prison room with three cells. The
interior walls are unchanged, and this structure now houses a museum.

One frame officers' quarters survives; it was moved back to the
fort site in 1963 and placed on a location where research had estab-
lished that one of the officers' quarters had stood, It is a two-
story house with two_rooms upstairs and two downstairs in the main
part of the house, The kitchen and dining room were in a one-story
ell at the back; this part of the building needs to be reconstructed,
and the rest of the building requires renovation.

Archeological investigations have been conducted at the fort site
in recent years to ascertain precise locations of the fort's main
structures. These will be marked so visitors may better visualize the
original appearance of the fort.

A part of the former military reservation administered by the
Kansas State Historical Society is set aside as a picnic area, and
in another section there is a small herd of buffalo.
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"0ld Fort Hays," St. Louis Globe, March 12, 1901,
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Memorial Association, 1959),

Winter, Maureen, editor, Indians to Industry: A History of Hays and
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Fort Hays was one of three posts (Harker, Hays, and Wallace)
established after the Civil War to protect the Smoky Hill trail,

It was originally established October 11, 1865, as Camp Fletcher,
some 1l miles southeast of Hays, The name was ordered changed to
Fort Hays on Novembgr 17, 1865. After a flood virtually destroyed
the fort in June, 4867, it was relocated at a more favorable site,
now just south of the city of Hays.

Never a large post, its strength ranged from 567 in August,
1867, to 12 in February, 1879, During mich of its existence both
infantry and cavalry were stationed there. Indian uprisings from
1867 to 1870 kept the fort active in patrol and scouting activities,

/' With the coming of the railroad Fort Hays was turned into a
quartermaster depot to supply other forts in the West and Southwest.
Since the Indian-menace had declined by the middle 1870's, post
commanders recommended that Fort Hays be gbandoned. No action was
tglgen for 15 years; finally the last troops moved out November 8,
1899,

The Department of the Interior then acquired the military res-
ervation, It was given tothe state of Kansas in 1900 to establish
a branch of the State Normal School, an experimental station to be
operated by the State Agricultural College, and a public park.
Frontier Historical Park with the three original fort buildings is
presently operated as a historic sit seum by the Kansas State
Historical Society.

0ld Fort Hays is an attractive, well-maintained example of a
frontier fort on the Central Plains,
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NAME AND TITLE:

Richard D. Pankratz, Plamner
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Kansas State Historical Society

DATE

August 1L, 1970

STREET AND NUMBER:

120 West 10th St.
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Topeka

STATE
Kansas

66612

CODE

As the designated State Liaison Officer for the Na-

tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law
89-665), 1 hereby nominate this property for inclusidn
in the National Register and certify that it has been

evaluated according to the criteria and procedures set
forth by the National Park Service.
level of significance of this nomination is:

The recommended

Historical Society, and State
Liaison Officer for Kansas
Date October 12, 1970

National Register.

.

I hereby certify that this property is included in the
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Chief, Office of Archeology and Historic Pres

AN 25 1971
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National g\ State [ Local []
Date
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Title Executive Secretary, Kansas Statd
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Ground Plan of Fort Hays, 1876
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NPS Form 10-900a OMB Approval No. 1024—0018
(Aug. 2002) (Expires Jan. 2005)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Sectionnumber —_____ Page

SUPPLEMENTARY LISTING RECORD

NRIS Reference Number: 71000314
Property Name: Fort Hays (Additional Documentation)
County: Ellis State: Kansas

Multiple Name

This property is listed in the National Register of Historic Places in accordance with the attached
nomination documentation subject to the following exceptions, exclusions, or amendments, '

notwithstanding the National Park Sepyice certification included in the nomination documentation.
~ P 74
- %ZA% CW March 26, 2004

Il Signature of ghe Keeper ' Date of Action

Amended Items in Nomination:

Section 5: Classification

The Number of Resources is hereby amended to indicate “4” contributing buildings, “1” contributing site,
and a total of “5” contributing resources, for the purpose of recognizing the overall historic site and the
officer’s quarters that was relocated back to the fort in 1987 as contributing resources.

The Kansas State Historic Preservation Office was notified of this amendment.

DISTRIBUTION:
National Register property file
Nominating Authority (without nomination attachment)
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United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Section number __7 _ Page __2

Amendment to Fort Hays National Register nomination
Ellis County, Kansas

At least four of the original Officers Quarters were sold at auction in the early 1900s and moved into
the city of Hays. At the time the nomination was written, it was assumed that only one of the original
Officers Quarters survived. This is the one that was moved back to the fort in 1963 and mentioned in
the nomination. It was known as OC#3 because it was relocated to the place of the third Officers
Quarters in the row of the original ten structures.

However, later research indicated that a second original structure had survived. This structure was
Returned to the fort in 1987. It was placed in the location of the second structure in the row and is
known as OC#2. It is identical to OC#3.



